

# 2023-2024 Student Handbook For Short-term Programs

# Greater Altoona Career & Technology Center Continuing Education

1500 4<sup>th</sup> Avenue, Altoona, PA 16602 <u>www.gactc.edu</u> (814) 941-8324

The administration, faculty, and staff welcome you to the Greater Altoona Career & Technology Center (GACTC). We are committed to providing students with the skills and support necessary to become successful in the workforce. The policies and procedures contained in this handbook are provided to assist you in adjusting to the challenges of our postsecondary programming and expectations as a postsecondary student. In order to guarantee you the best education possible, we expect you to adhere to the policies and procedures under which our school operates. The information presented in this handbook will assist you in becoming familiar with the policies and procedures for postsecondary educational programs of the GACTC. Please contact the Continuing Education Office with any questions and make certain to take advantage of the services provided.

This handbook is for information only. The information presented in this handbook does not pertain to the programs and courses offered through Ed2Go. The provisions of the handbook are not to be construed as representing contractual or any other obligations of the Greater Altoona Career & Technology Center. The GACTC expressly reserves the right to increase, decrease, withdraw, cancel, reschedule, repeal, change, modify or amend any provisions, policies, requirements, rules, charges, fees, expenses, courses, programs of study, degrees, and other academic regulations. The GACTC further reserves the right to dismiss a student from the school for cause at any time. It also reserves the right to impose probation, suspension or other disciplinary action on any student whose conduct or achievement is unsatisfactory. When a student is dismissed or suspended for cause, there will be no refund of tuition or fees paid. Neither will there be any refunds in the event the operation of the GACTC is temporarily suspended as a result of any act of God, strike, work stoppage, disruption, or any other reason beyond its control. Other refund policies are stated elsewhere in this handbook. Admission to and attendance at the GACTC is a privilege and not a right. Membership at the GACTC bears with it the responsibility to adhere to its policies and regulations.

# **Table of Contents**

# Section 1: Information about the GACTC

Mission & Philosophy

Accreditation

Non-discrimination Policy

**Employee Directory** 

**Building Security & Access** 

**Building Evacuation/Fire Drills** 

Building Closures, Delays, and Cancellations

# **Section 2: Admissions**

**Admission Requirements** 

Readmission

# Section 3: Academic Policies and Procedures

**Disability Services** 

Family Education Rights and Privacy Act

**Program Schedules** 

Absences/Tardiness

**Tuition Policy** 

Military Leave

Withdraw Policy & Procedure

Grading

Incomplete Grade

**Academic Integrity Standards** 

**Grievance Procedure** 

**Graduation Requirements** 

Change of Student Information

Media Release

# Section 4: Student Responsibility

**Student Conduct** 

Dress/Appearance

**Student Photo Identification Cards** 

Possession or Use of Tobacco

A Drug-Free Workplace

**Dangerous Weapons or Substance** 

**Harassment Policy** 

**Terroristic Threats** 

**Electronic Devices** 

**Safety Regulations** 

# Section 5: Student Resources & Services

**Academic Support Services** 

Non-academic Support Services

**Career Services** 

**Computer Use and Internet Access** 

# Section 1: Information about the GACTC

### Mission & Philosophy

The mission of the Greater Altoona Career and Technology Continuing Education Office is to provide occupation-specific education for adults in collaboration with business, labor, and our communities in preparation for the demands of the current workforce. The Continuing Education Office further believes that vocational technical education should be an integral part of lifelong education with a dual purpose: (a) to provide individuals with the skills and knowledge needed to enter employment or to pursue further education; and (b) to assist in the economic development of the area by providing business and industry with productive, adaptable, and competent workers.

The Continuing Education Office subscribes to the philosophy that it can enrich an ever-expanding community by providing educational programs to help each individual student grow as a person, as an employee, and as a citizen. This institution recognizes that an ever growing number of persons are in need of experiences that will allow them to compete in and contribute to the rapidly changing technological society. The Continuing Education Office believes that education is a continuing need for every citizen. It stands ready to provide training and enrichment for all members of the community, both through formal instruction in all areas of adult needs and interests, and through informal means by its involvement in community affairs.

In sum, the Continuing Education Office believes it is uniquely fitted through its diversified, yet united programs to contribute to the development of the individuals within the geographic area it serves and thus, the development of the area itself. It believes that, to function in a society marked by rapid technological advancement and vast diversification and specialization, the individual needs to acquire an understanding both broad and deep of the great inherited body of knowledge.

### Accreditation

The GACTC has institutional accreditation through the Middle States Association of Colleges and Schools, Commissions of Elementary and Secondary Schools. A number of individual programs meet specific industry skill standards and hold additional certifications and accreditations.



### **Non-discrimination Policy**

It is the policy of the Greater Altoona Career and Technology Center to ensure an equal opportunity in employment and programs, services, and activities without any consideration of an individual's race, color, national origin, sex, gender identity or expression, age, religion, disability, veteran status, genetic information, and/or any other characteristic protected by federal, state or local law. For information regarding civil rights, grievance procedures or access, contact Title IX Section 504 Coordinator, Nicole Zernick, at 1500 Fourth Avenue, Altoona, PA 16602-3695, email nicole.zernick@gactc.edu, or telephone (814) 505-1283.

### **Employee Directory**

The GACTC Staff Directory is available on our website at <a href="https://www.gactc.edu/directory/">https://www.gactc.edu/directory/</a>. To contact the Continuing Education Office, please call (814) 941-8324 or email <a href="mailto:adulted@gactc.edu">adulted@gactc.edu</a>.

# **Parking**

Students are permitted to park in the designated parking lots. Student parking is available in lots #3, #4, and #5. Handicapped parking is provided to individuals with the appropriate state approved license plate or window card in lot #2. The school recommends that you refrain from parking in front of homes around the GACTC and in the former Belmar Hotel parking lot. For most homeowners, the space in front of their homes is their only place to park. Especially during winter months, this space is cleaned by them. Please respect these homes as if they were your own.

# **Building Security & Access**

Security officers, greeters, video cameras, limited access, and the occasional use of metal detectors are all methods in place to ensure the safety and protection of our students and staff. Students must always display respect and courtesy toward the officers and greeters and comply with their requests (present identification, etc.). Outside entrances are monitored and some are locked during the school day to limit access to the public.

Please access the GACTC through the main entrance on 4<sup>th</sup> Avenue unless otherwise directed by the Continuing Education Office. Doors are locked at all times; please use the buzzer to gain entry to the building.

# **Building Evacuation/Fire Drills**

In the event of a school emergency requiring evacuation of the building, an announcement will be made over the public address system. Following this announcement, all staff and students will exit the school in a quick and orderly fashion. Wheelchair-bound and/or handicapped students that require assistance during building evacuations are to be identified to the Continuing Education Coordinator, and their instructors will be issued special instructions to ensure the students' safety. Elevators are not permitted to be used during fire drills or in the event of an actual fire. No persons are permitted to return to the building until instructed to return by the GACTC administration.

### **Building Closures, Delays, and Cancellations**

There are certain occasions that may require the GACTC to cancel class for various circumstances, including inclement weather. If the school is closed due to inclement weather conditions, all in-person classes are also canceled. Instructors may provide alternative methods of instructions, such as video conferencing, virtual work, etc. You will be notified of delays, closures, and/or cancellations. We encourage students to use good judgment and arrive as soon as possible or notify the Continuing Education Office at (814) 941-8324 if you are not able to attend class for any reason.

### **Admission Requirements**

The GACTC welcomes all interested individuals to submit applications for admission into our programs. Acceptance to GACTC and the intended adult education program is based upon the following admission criteria and availability in the intended program.

- Expanded Function Dental Assistant Certificate
  - High school diploma or GED required for admission.
  - Two years experience as a dental assistant in a general dentistry office or licensure as a dental hygienist required to participate in the program. Please submit this form with the application to the Continuing Education Office.

  - Dental Assisting National X-ray Certification; a copy of the X-ray certification must be provided with the application.

### Phlebotomy

- Application available at <u>https://www.gactc.edu/adult-education/part-time-programs-testing-and-certifications/phlebotomy/.</u>
- Copy of the applicant's final high school transcript, documentation of completion of a high school equivalency (i.e., GED), or equivalent foreign education as verified by a GACTC-approved credential evaluation service. Applicants who apply during their senior year of high school must provide a copy of their final transcript following graduation from high school.
- o PA Criminal Record information. Applicants must submit a Criminal Background History from the PA State Police that is within 1 year of the date of the first scheduled class session of the GACTC phlebotomy program. Applicants may request the background record from the PATCH system at <a href="https://epatch.state.pa.us/Home.jsp">https://epatch.state.pa.us/Home.jsp</a> (there is a\$22.00 fee). GACTC reserves the right to deny applicants to postsecondary educational programs based on the results of the criminal background check. GACTC reserves the right to accept an applicant with a criminal background based on the severity, date(s), and frequency of the conviction(s). Instructions for completing the PA Criminal Record Check are available here.
- PA Child Abuse Clearance. Applicants must submit a PA Child Abuse Clearance that is within 1 year of the date of the first scheduled class session of the GACTC phlebotomy program. To request this clearance, please visit <a href="https://www.compass.state.pa.us/cwis/public/home">https://www.compass.state.pa.us/cwis/public/home</a> to create an individual account. Please follow the instructions to apply for the PA Child Abuse History Clearance. The purpose of the clearance is School Employee. When your report is ready, please provide it to the Continuing Education office. There is a \$13.00 fee for the PA Child Abuse History Clearance. The GACTC reserves the right to deny applicants entrance to postsecondary educational programs based on the results of the PA Child Abuse Clearance.
- FBI Criminal History Record. Process online at <a href="https://www.identogo.com/">https://www.identogo.com/</a>. Follow steps on the website to request digital fingerprinting. When prompted, enter service code (phlebotomy applicants use 1KG6NX). Click on "schedule or manage appointment". Visit an IdentoGo Center to complete fingerprinting. Please provide your results to the Continuing Education Office once you receive them. You may email the results to adulted@gactc.edu. You can also bring in or e-mail us your receipt that you will receive when you pay IdentoGo.

Health Examination Form, completed by a medical professional. Students are required to be screened for Tuberculosis by having a mantoux (2 Step PPD) test, IGRA blood test, or, if deemed necessary, a chest X-ray. Negative results must be submitted to the Continuing Education Office before the first day of clinical. Students are required to have a physical including a Hepatitis B vaccination and other certain immunizations. Clinical sites may require the COVID-19 vaccination, however, exceptions may be available, per the clinical sites' policies.

We recommend meeting with our admissions counselors to review intended program expectations, recommended academic preparedness, program format, and tuition information.

Upon admission to the GACTC and the program, a \$100.00 registration fee may be required. The registration fee is non-refundable. The GACTC reserves the right to deny admission and/or readmission to any student for an adult education program if, in the opinion of GACTC administration, his/her admission is not in the best interest of the student or GACTC.

### Readmission

Students who have withdrawn from the GACTC who are eligible for readmission may reapply to the GACTC after waiting one calendar year or with approval by the Continuing Education Coordinator to return sooner. Readmitted students may be enrolled on a probationary status if necessary as determined by the Continuing Education Coordinator. Terms of probationary status will be determined during the readmission process and reviewed with the student. This procedure applies only to students who were dismissed. It does not apply to voluntary withdrawals. Readmitted students will be charged the current academic year tuition and fees.

# **Section 3: Academic Policies and Procedures**

### **Disability Services**

It is the policy of the GACTC not to discriminate against a person with disabling or handicapping conditions in its education programs, services, and/or activities and to make reasonable accommodations to allow such individuals to participate fully in the programs, services, and activities offered.

No qualified applicant or student with a disability may be excluded from participation in or denied the benefits of any program, activity, or course on the basis of said disability. Academic standards and requirements that are essential to the program of instruction in which a student is enrolled will not be modified. Students will be required to provide documentation of learning support needs to the Continuing Education Office. Procedural and environmental adjustments, which do not substantially modify essential course requirements, will be made in accordance with the procedure set forth in this policy. The GACTC will also take reasonable steps to provide or permit auxiliary aids and/or services. Please contact the Continuing Education Office to discuss learning support needs and possible accommodations.

# **Family Education Rights and Privacy Act**

The Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974 grants postsecondary students certain rights related to their educational records. These rights, in summary, include the following:

- 1. The right to inspect the student's educational records. Students wishing to inspect their record(s) should make the request in writing to the Continuing Education Office. The written request to inspect the student's education record shall include the record(s) the student wishes to inspect. Arrangements will be made for access by the student to inspect the requested record(s) within 45 days after the day the Continuing Education Office receives the request for access.
- 2. The right to request amendment of a student's educational record(s) that the student believes contains inaccurate information or information the student believes is in violation of the student's privacy rights under FERPA. Requests for amendment of a student's educational record(s) should be submitted to the Continuing Education Office in writing from the student. The request should identify the information they want changed and the reason(s) for the requested change. The GACTC will inform the student of the decision in writing.
- 3. The right to provide written consent before the school discloses personally identifiable information (PII) from the student's education record(s), except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent. The GACTC discloses education records without a student's prior written consent under the FERPA exception for disclosure to school officials with legitimate educational interests. A legitimate educational interest exists if the school official needs to review an educational record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibilities for the GACTC.
- 4. The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the GACTC to comply with the requirement of FERPA.

Students may request that the school not release directory information including student name, address, telephone number, date and place of birth, program of study, dates of attendance, and enrollment status. Requests to withhold directory information should be made in writing to the Continuing Education Office within 2 weeks of the beginning of each course.

It is the policy of the GACTC in accordance with FERPA, to withhold personally identifiable information contained in our students' educational records unless the student has consented to disclosure to specific persons via the FERPA Consent

to Release Student Information form. The FERPA Consent to Release Student Information form is available from the Continuing Education Office.

For full notice of students' rights under FERPA, please visit the U.S. Department of Education website at <a href="https://studentprivacy.ed.gov/?src=fpco">https://studentprivacy.ed.gov/?src=fpco</a>.

### **Program Schedules**

Schedules vary by program. Please see the program syllabus or contact the Continuing Education Office for program schedule information. Breaks are provided by instructors during scheduled class hours. Instructors determine the timing and frequency of breaks.

### **Absences/Tardiness**

All students must complete the program in accordance with the program syllabus. Student attendance is recorded by the instructor on a daily basis. A student is expected to maintain regular attendance in the program. Employers recognize that students who attend their educational program with regularity will also be a more responsible and reliable worker on the job.

Students who are absent for scheduled class sessions may need to make-up the missed class sessions, according to the program syllabus and at the discretion of the instructor. Make-up hours will be invoiced to the student at a rate of \$40.00 per hour. Students with excessive absences may be terminated from the program. Students reporting late for class will be considered tardy and may be denied admission by the instructor and be recorded as absent. Absences are monitored and reported to the Continuing Education Office. Instructors have no inherent obligation to provide make-up opportunities for an absence unless in their judgment the reason for the absence warrants such consideration. Make-up hours must be coordinated with the Instructor and will be scheduled at the discretion of the Instructor.

Students are required to contact the Continuing Education Office and instructor at least 2 hours prior to the start of their scheduled program/class time if they are going to be absent or late for class. Students may contact the Continuing Education Office at <a href="mailto:adulted@gactc.edu">adulted@gactc.edu</a> or 814.941.8324. Excused absences are recorded as time lost within the program and may need to be made up in order to complete the training program.

Certain matters may necessitate an individual not being in class. Although they may be justified, these days are still marked as days absent and the hours missed on these days must be made up. Extenuating circumstances that prevent a student from attending class (e.g., medical emergency, etc.) will be evaluated by the Continuing Education Coordinator as it relates to fulfilling requirements. Individual determinations regarding attendance may be made if justification is provided and all other academic and financial requirements are met. A student who has been absent for 4 consecutive class sessions without authorization shall be determined to have left the program and shall be terminated from the program.

### **Tuition Policy**

Tuition and fees are charged to students through a student's tuition account. Tuition rates are approved by the GACTC's Joint Operating Committee. Please review the following information regarding the tuition and fees for the following programs for the 2023-2024 academic year:

- Expanded Function Dental Assistant Certificate
  - Program:

- EFDA 101: 96 hours of classroom and lab instruction at the GACTC
- EFDA 102: 120 hours of clinical experience at student's dental office
- Tuition: \$5,250.00
- Requires \$100.00 non refundable registration fee.
- Phlebotomy Certificate
  - o Program:
    - PHB 100: 96 hours of classroom and lab instruction at the GACTC
    - PHB 200: 40 hours of clinical experience at a medical facility
  - o Tuition: \$1,650.00
- Pennsylvania Vehicle Safety Inspection Training & Testing
  - o Program: 12 hours of instruction at the GACTC; written and tactical testing conducted at the GACTC.
  - Tuition: \$185.00, which includes textbook and Category I inspection test; an additional \$50.00 is assessed for each additional category. Additional textbooks are \$15.00 each.

Students may be responsible for other fees and educational resources not included in the tuition and fees.

If the student is being sponsored by an agency/employer, funding source, or special program, a letter must be sent to the Continuing Education Office verifying sponsorship or funding prior to the student's first scheduled class session.

Students must have made payment in full or have established a payment plan by the first scheduled day of the program. Tuition is required to be paid in full by the end of the program. Students choosing to utilize a payment plan must have a formal payment plan set up with the Continuing Education office. Students must follow the terms of the executed payment plan. The payment plan is only available to students enrolled in the phlebotomy or EFDA certificate programs.

A \$15.00 fee will be assessed for each bad check or other instrument presented by or on behalf of the student and accepted that is not negotiable. Payment of the fee and the amount due must be paid in full to continue participation in the program.

A student's tuition account must be satisfied and completed prior to the completion of his/her training program. The GACTC reserves the right to withhold services along with the credential, transcript of grades or other records of achievement until a student's tuition account has been satisfied in full. All delinquent accounts are subject to the collection procedures established by the GACTC policy.

### Military Leave

Students who must be absent for military orders requiring active duty, may be excused from classes if a copy of the orders is submitted to the Continuing Education Office. Military leave of absences are approved for the period noted on the military orders.

### Withdraw Policy & Procedure

An individual is considered a student once he/she has been accepted into the program and has paid the \$100.00 non refundable registration fee, if required. Students may withdraw from a program without penalty or obligation if notice is given in writing to the GACTC 24 hours prior to the first scheduled class session of the program. There will be no refund of tuition after the first day of class for the Pennsylvania Vehicle Safety Inspection program. A student enrolled in the Phlebotomy or Expanded Function Dental Assistant Certificate program that withdraws between hour 1 and 16 of the scheduled program hours may receive a refund of 50% of the paid tuition. After 16 hours of the scheduled program sessions have passed, students are not eligible for a refund.

A withdrawal is a student's separation from the GACTC with no intent to return for the remainder of the scheduled program. It is recommended students contemplating withdrawal from the GACTC discuss concerns with the Continuing Education Coordinator.

Students who find it necessary to withdraw are required to complete a withdrawal form, available from the Continuing Education Office. The withdrawal request will be reviewed by the Continuing Education Coordinator. If a student withdraws or is terminated from a program, the last date of attendance is the last date a student has attended a class in the program. A withdrawal is considered official once a completed withdrawal form has been processed.

### **Termination**

The GACTC reserves the right to terminate the enrollment of a student who does not meet academic, attendance, or conduct standards. Termination by the GACTC of a student's enrollment may occur for the following reasons:

- Failure to maintain regular class attendance. A student will be considered terminated/withdrawn from the program after a student has not attended classes for four (4) consecutive class sessions, unless an exception has been granted by the Continuing Education Coordinator.
- Violations of the student conduct policy.
- Failure to abide by policies, procedures, and guidelines of the GACTC as a postsecondary student.

If a student is terminated by the GACTC, the last date of attendance will be the last date a student attended class.

All refunds will be made within thirty (30) days of withdrawal. Refunds of less than \$1.00 will not be refunded.

### Grading

Each course has measurement guidelines for assessment of a student's competence. Grades are issued at the completion of the training program. The grading system is measured against a standard norm which is designated to assess student progress, growth, acquired knowledge, and skill competence. The grading system is detailed in the course syllabus.

### **Incomplete Grade**

A student who is unable to meet the course requirements within the scheduled time may request an "Incomplete" grade, identified as an "I" grade. An incomplete grade is a temporary grade that may be granted to a student who may have experienced circumstances beyond his or her control that prevents completion of course requirements by the end of the academic term.

To request an incomplete grade for a course, a student must submit in writing a request to the Continuing Education Coordinator prior to the last scheduled day of the course. The request is reviewed in consultation with the course instructor and a decision regarding the incomplete grade will be provided, in writing, by the Continuing Education Coordinator. The allowed extension/time limit for the incomplete grade and the associated conditions will be determined by the Continuing Education Coordinator in consultation with the course instructor. Once the conditions of the incomplete grade are satisfied by the indicated date, the course instructor will assign the appropriate grade in place of the incomplete grade. If the conditions of the incomplete grade are not met by the indicated date, the incomplete grade becomes a grade of "F".

### **Academic Integrity Standards**

The GACTC expects students to be honest and ethical in completion of the program requirements. Students are expected to complete program requirements with integrity. Academic dishonesty occurs when a student commits dishonest acts within the student's academic work with the intent to deceive. Students' grades should reflect only their own efforts. The GACTC may impose sanctions on students that violate the academic integrity standards. The following are examples of dishonest and deceptive acts:

- Cheating including, but not limited to, use of unauthorized materials, devices, etc. during testing; providing or receiving unauthorized assistance in completion of assignments; having access to testing or assignment materials before a test or assignment is given, without consent from the instructor;
- Plagiarism including failing to give credit of the ideas, words, and/or data of another individual as one's own work:
- Lying, falsifying information;
- Using an information technology account of another student including accounts to access email, computers, and student information systems (such as Infinite Campus and Canvas)

The GACTC reserves the right to impose sanctions on any student that engages in the above acts and any other dishonest acts that violate the academic integrity standards. Sanctions may include lowered or failing grades on an assignment or course, suspension, or termination. Students are encouraged to report violations of the academic integrity standards to the instructor or Continuing Education Coordinator.

### **Grievance Procedure**

A student grievance exists when it is alleged that a student has been unfairly treated or has not been afforded due process. Adult students, and/or their representatives, have all the rights given to every citizen by the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution. This procedure defines the due process procedure to be followed when filing a grievance.

Step 1: Within ten school days after the alleged violation, the grievant shall initiate an informal discussion with the teacher or person(s) who allegedly treated the student unfairly. If this informal discussion does not resolve the issue, the grievant shall initiate a discussion/conference with a counselor, or the supervisor in charge of student services or continuing education about resolving the complaint.

Step 2: If the grievance is not resolved under Step 1, the grievant shall submit the written complaint to the individual designated as Equal Rights and Opportunities Coordinator. The Coordinator has the authority to investigate the grievance and attempt a solution. If a solution is not achieved, then the Coordinator will set up a formal meeting with the Continuing Education. Also, at this time, the grievant's letter shall be passed on to the Supervisor of Secondary Education or Continuing Education, along with any back-up investigative information already collected. The Supervisor shall respond within ten working days.

Step 3: If the grievance is not resolved under Step 2, the grievant may request a formal meeting with the Executive Director. This request must take place within five school days from the Supervisor's response in Step 2. A grievant has the right to be accompanied by an additional individual during Steps 3 and 4.

Step 4: If the grievance is not resolved in Step 3, the grievant shall refer the complaint (written letter) to the Chairperson of the Operating Committee within ten calendar days. The Executive Director shall respond within 30 calendar days of receiving such correspondence.

# **Completion Requirements**

For a student to be eligible to receive the credential from the program of study, the student must meet the following criteria:

- Complete all program courses and achieve final grades of a minimum 75% (C grade).
- The student has satisfied all financial obligations owed to the school.
- The student must have not exceeded the allowable absences set forth in the course syllabi.

Extenuating circumstances that prevent a student from attending class will be evaluated by the Continuing Education Coordinator as it relates to fulfilling program requirements. A determination may be made to waive the policy if justification is provided and all other academic and financial requirements are met.

# **Change of Student Information**

Students shall inform the Continuing Education office of changes to a student's contact information, including mailing address, phone number, email address, name, etc. Please complete a Change of Student Information form, available from the Continuing Education or Practical Nursing Program offices, to update this critical information, as needed.

Students must report changes to their PA State Police Criminal Background History, PA Child Abuse Clearance, and Federal Criminal History within 14 calendar days of knowledge of the change to any of these clearances. The GACTC reserves the right to request updated clearances at any time, including, but not limited to, PA State Police Criminal Background History, PA Child Abuse Clearance, and Federal Criminal History.

### **Media Release**

The GACTC documents and advertises events, programs and student accomplishments through photos and videos in a variety of formats to include, but not limited to, website and social media. Students will be asked to review the GACTC's postsecondary student media release, and provide, if acceptable, consent for use of students' images and likeness and/or any interview statements from students in its publications, advertising or other media activities, without expectation of compensation or other remuneration, now or in the future. The media release will be provided to students by the end of the first week of the program schedule. The release may be revoked at any time in writing to the Continuing Education or Practical Nursing offices.

# **Section 4: Student Responsibilities**

We are appreciative of the trust you have placed in the GACTC to provide you with high-quality training to prepare for your chosen career. As a postsecondary student enrolled with the GACTC, we provide many services to support you, and we encourage you to embrace these keys for success:

- Come to class regularly and on time.
- Be willing to try and try again as you learn. Know that mistakes are part of learning! Accept that if you cannot do it now, you simply can't do it YET.
- Cooperate and collaborate with your instructors and fellow students.
- Look and act the part of the occupation.
- Be dependable and responsible.
- Appreciate and respect that your instructor is an expert in their field.
- Understand that you are part of a team and that teamwork is a component of your success.

### **Student Conduct**

Student behavior in the building and grounds is expected to be responsible in nature and modeled after any other professional situation. It is essential that the rights and welfare of all students are protected; therefore, interference with the orderly process of education or violation of standard rules of conduct set in place by the educational facility will not be tolerated.

Violation of any of the following rules and regulations by a participant will be cause for dismissal:

- 1. Possession or use of drugs and/or alcohol on school property.
- 2. Possession of firearms, or other weapons, on school property.
- 3. Any threatening actions or words with intent of bodily harm or harassment to students, school or program personnel.
- 4. Disrespect/defiance in conduct or words, including profanity, regarding school or program personnel.
- 5. Fighting or malicious conduct resulting in bodily harm to students, school personnel, program personnel, or damage to school property.
- 6. Vandalism on school property. In addition, students are responsible for payment of damages and may face criminal charges.
- 7. Theft of school property. In addition, students are responsible for return of items and may face criminal charges.
- 8. Refusal to complete assignments or achieve an acceptable minimum standard established by the instructor.

Violation of any of the following rules and regulations by any participant is cause for suspension:

- 1. Leave clinical or class without cause. Any enrollee shall be deemed to have left clinical or class if he or she walks out of class or abandons his/her position or refuses or fails to continue with assignments. The first offense will result in three (3) days suspension, the second offense may result in termination from the program.
- 2. Willful misconduct during their education. Willful misconduct is interpreted to be "an act in willful disregard of the educational agency's interest, or a deliberate violation of the rules of the individual educational agency."

### Examples of willful misconduct include:

- 1. Students under suspicion of alcohol will be immediately drug tested.
- 2. Planning, initiating, participating in, or otherwise aiding or assisting in the conduct of any unlawful demonstration or civil disturbance.
- 3. Cheating on course examinations or assignments.
- 4. Serious offenses of gambling.
- 5. Smoking in and around the Greater Altoona Career & Technology Center is not permitted by students. A \$75.00 fine may be imposed on any person in violation of this policy.

The preceding list does not include every situation considered as willful misconduct. It is only a guideline of the type of actions often involved in termination from the courses. We reserve the right to dismiss any student who cannot benefit

from the education or who refuses to cooperate in any manner. (A failing grade, as noted on the report card, is cause for such dismissal.)

Disciplinary problems will be approached on a case-by-case basis. Each student's disciplinary problem shall be considered individually, with the disciplinary action based on the evaluation of all facts, including previous conduct, extenuating circumstances, and the severity of the offense. The appropriate disciplinary action shall be determined following consultation with the instructor and the Continuing Education Coordinator.

# **Dress/Appearance**

Adult students follow the approved dress regulations as required for all students. Appropriate dress and grooming should reflect your preparation for a career within a specific trade area. Appropriate dress is expected in your intended profession, thus the way you dress reflects an image prospective employers expect. Each program has specific dress codes based on the industry and program. The program instructors will review the dress code and expectations with students.

This dress guide is prepared under the provisions of Act 46 of 1998 which authorizes schools to adopt dress or uniform policies. It is intended to help students best meet their vocational goals. Since every occupation carries with it certain modes of dress, habits of work and unique responsibilities, students are expected to look and act the part of the most successful employees in each occupational field.

The rationale is basically three-fold:

- Safety: Safety hazards, while varying from one program to another, are inherent in every vocational-technical program. The school board, administration, and instructional staff share responsibility for the safety of students. Therefore, required is a common mode of dress consistent with reasonable accident prevention measures for all students enrolled in the school.
- Personal Hygiene: Personal pride is best reflected in one's personal appearance. Cleanliness, neatness, and appropriate dress together do more to positively influence others in the workplace than most other personal traits.
- Standards of Business and Industry: The advisory committees for the respective school programs are on record in support of student attire appropriate for related occupations. Each of these advisory committees is composed of local trades' persons, supervisors, and other employers who know first-hand the traits, including dress and grooming, that are most desirable in entry level workers from the GACTC. In order to meet the predominant expectations of employers, the GACTC must listen to those in an official advisory role and gear each vocational program accordingly. A student's everyday school appearance should approximate appropriate dress for a job interview.
- Daily Appearance: Students must be in uniform. Students will not be permitted in the classroom or lab, if this rule is not strictly followed.

### Student Photo Identification Cards

Students may be issued a photo identification card. The identification card must be carried by students at all times, if issued; the identification cards will be used for participation in GACTC-related activities and training, and should be shown to GACTC authorities and security personnel when requested, and relinquished upon request. The identification card is the property of the GACTC, however, students are accountable for the card. If the card is lost, stolen, or destroyed, students should report this information to the Continuing Education Office immediately so that a new card can be issued.

### **Possession or Use of Tobacco**

In the interest of creating a healthy environment for our students, employees, and visitors, no smoking and/or use of smokeless tobacco will be permitted at any time in the GACTC building, entrance ways, on the sidewalks, on the loading

docks at either end of the building, or anywhere else on the surrounding premises of the school. This includes vapes. Any items containing nicotine, tobacco, etc. will be confiscated by GACTC personnel and may not be returned to the student.

The no-smoking policy will be enforced in two stages:

First Offense: The offender will be informed of one's violation of school policy.

Additional Offenses: The student may be suspended or terminated from the school, and/or a fine may be imposed.

## A Drug-Free Workplace

It is the policy of the Greater Altoona Career & Technology Center that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited on the property of the school and on non-school property used in the performance of school services.

Possession of drug paraphernalia and or alcoholic products is forbidden. The school reserves the right to perform testing upon reasonable suspicion that a student is under the influence of drugs or alcohol. This testing may occur at any time during school hours, in school or during school sponsored functions, on or away from campus. School policy provides for drug testing of students in any area. Every student must consent to drug testing at any time during the school year for one or more of the following reasons: cooperative education, reasonable suspicion, and/or random testing. Students must agree to cooperate in the drug testing procedures in order to remain enrolled at the GACTC. Students will be asked to review the drug and alcohol testing consent policy and provide consent for testing.

Any student found in violation of this prohibition shall be subject to disciplinary action, including dismissal, and may be required to participate in a drug abuse assistance or drug rehabilitation program. As a condition of school enrollment, every student shall abide by the terms of this policy and notify the Continuing Education Coordinator of any criminal drug statute conviction. This Policy Statement is adopted in accordance with the requirements of federal law, the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988.

The following acts by a student while in school buildings, on school property, at school-sponsored functions off school property, or in route to any of the foregoing shall be regarded as misconduct by such student provisions of Article XIII, Section 1318 of the Public School Code of 1949 as amended, also Act 26 of 1995 - Safe and Drug Free Schools:

- 1. The possession or use of narcotics or dangerous drugs, as defined in The Drug, Device, and Cosmetic Act (Act of September 26, 1961, P.L. 1664), and not prescribed by a physician or the possession or use of alcoholic beverages; or
- 2. Being under the influence of narcotics or dangerous drugs, as defined in The Drug, Device, and Cosmetic Act (Act of September 26, 1961, P.L. 1664), and not prescribed by a physician or being under the influence of alcoholic beverages.

Additional information on health hazards associated with drug and alcohol use or on drug and alcohol treatment services is available upon request from the Continuing Education Office.

### **Dangerous Weapons or Substance**

Students are not permitted to possess or transport any object that could reasonably be considered a dangerous substance or a dangerous weapon on school premises at all times. This would include any school-sponsored activity on school premises or off school premises during the day or evening hours. Any student not adhering to this policy may face charges under the Pennsylvania criminal code as deemed necessary by school authorities.

This policy is in compliance with Act 26 of 1995 - The Act of March 10, 1949 (P.L. 30, No. 14), known as the Public School Code of 1949, amended July 1, 1981 (P.L. 200, No. 62), is amended to SECTION 1317.2 Possession of Weapons Prohibited - Amended 1995:

7029.1 Definitions:

- a. "Weapon" the term shall include but not be limited to any knife, cutting instrument, cutting tool, nunchaku stick, brass or metal knuckles, firearm, shotgun, rifle, bb or pellet gun, look-alike gun, paintball gun, chemical agent, explosive device, and any other instrument or implement capable of inflicting serious bodily injury.
- b. "Possession" a student is in possession of a weapon when the weapon is found on the person of the student; in the student's locker; under the student's control while the student is on school property, on property being used by the school, at any school function or activity, at any school event held away from the school; or while the student is on the way to or from the GACTC. School policy allows use of metal detection devices.

  Authority

7029.3 The Joint Operating Committee prohibits possession of weapons and replicas of weapons in any school district building, on school property, at any school-sponsored activity, and in any public conveyance providing transportation to school or a school-sponsored activity.

7029.4 The Joint Operating Committee shall expel for a period of not less than one (1) year any student who violates this weapons policy. Such expulsion shall be given in conformance with formal due process proceedings required by law. The Executive Director may recommend discipline short of expulsion on a case-by-case basis.

# **Harassment Policy**

### Statement of Policy

7030.1 It is the policy of the Greater Altoona Career & Technology Center to maintain a pleasant, safe, non-hostile learning environment for students which fosters the educational process.

7030.2 To ensure such an environment, the GACTC strictly prohibits verbal, physical, or graphic conduct by any student or non-student which harasses, disrupts, or interferes with an individual's performance or which creates an intimidating, offensive, or hostile environment. All students have a responsibility to conduct themselves in a manner consistent with this policy, thereby avoiding conduct that constitutes unlawful harassment.

7030.3 The GACTC will not tolerate any type of unlawful harassment of students by other students, employees, or non-employees (vendors, contractors, volunteers, etc.). Additionally, conduct that interferes with the learning environment or makes such an environment hostile, intimidating, or offensive will not be tolerated.

7030.4 Unlawful harassment is a form of discrimination prohibited by Titles VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, Title IX of the 1972 Education Amendments, Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, the Code of Conduct for Education, 22 PA Code § 235.11 and Student Rights and Responsibilities, 22 PA Code § 12.1, et. seq.

7030.5 Retaliation taken against students who bring unlawful harassment charges, or individuals who assist in investigating such charge or who provide witness statements in connections with such charges, is strictly prohibited. Definitions

7030.7 A "student" refers to an individual registered part-time or full-time in any secondary or postsecondary or continuing education programs or courses sponsored by the GACTC.

7030.8 Unlawful harassment includes, but is not limited to slurs, jokes, or other verbal, graphic or physical conduct related to an individual's race, color, religion, ancestry, sex, national origin or disability.

# **Terroristic Threats**

A student shall at no time threaten to commit any crime of violence with the purpose to terrorize another or to cause evacuation of the building, place of assembly, or facility of transportation, or otherwise cause serious public inconvenience, or in a reckless disregard of the risk of causing such terror or inconvenience:

- On the school premises during and immediately before or after school hours.
- On the school premises at any time when the school is being used by a school-sponsored group, non-curricular related student group, and/or private non-school person(s) group.
- Off school premises involving violations or possible violations of the Pennsylvania Criminal Code, and/or when such conduct or conditions may directly, and/or immediately result in adverse effects on the educational process, when there is a reasonable need to preserve overall school discipline, when there is a reasonable need to preserve respect for teachers and other school employees, and/or when there is reasonableness in the effect including danger to the health, safety, welfare or morals of students within the school system.

Referral to Civil Authorities for charges under the Pennsylvania Criminal code shall be made when deemed necessary by school authorities.

### **Electronic Devices**

Personal electronic devices (cell phones, tablets, laptops, etc.) must be turned off while students are in class. Instructors will inform students when electronic devices may be used in class. If you receive an electronic device from the GACTC for your participation in learning activities associated with your program of study, the device should be used as prescribed by your program of study and within the terms of the GACTC's Acceptable Use Policy.

# **Safety Regulations**

You will be acquainted with the safety rules and regulations for each trade by your instructor. General safety rules follow:

- Do not operate machines unless instructed by the teacher.
- Obey warning and danger signs.
- Horseplay and practical jokes will not be tolerated in the shops or classroom.
- Don't take chances. If you are not sure what to do, ask your instructor.
- Safety devices that are found on a machine must be used. Wear your safety goggles, glasses and other safety apparel required by the instructor in the learning area.
- Clothing must fit properly. No extremes will be tolerated.
- It is suggested that all students have medical insurance to defray the cost of medical attention in the event of an accident. The GACTC will not be responsible for any student injuries or accidents.
- At no time should tools or other materials be left on the floor. Keep aisles clear at all times.
- Keep arrangement of tools in storage areas as originally planned and designed.
- At no time should you handle any project that does not belong to you.
- Never make any adjustments to tools or machines unless you are familiar with the procedures.
- Report all damaged tools and equipment to the instructor when damage occurs or when it is recognized.

Instructors are asked to firmly enforce safety regulations at all times and with all students. In the interest of your personal safety and the safety of your classmates, you are not only asked, but required to obey all safety regulations at all times. An instructor who sees a safety violation committed in the shop or lab will immediately call it to the attention of the offender. The offender will be expected to comply with the instructor's request and make every effort not to repeat the violation. Students who commit repeated violations may be suspended or terminated.

In the event of an accident or injury, the student must complete an accident report form with the instructor to record the injury and the specifics which led up to the injury. The accident report for each occurrence must be completed and signed by both the instructor and the student. The report should then be provided to the Continuing Education Office.

# **Section 5: Student Resources & Services**

# **Academic Support Services**

The GACTC provides general career and educational counseling to assist students in achieving success in their training and education. Counseling regarding academic performance and tutorial assistance is available to all adult students. Tutoring may be provided on an individual basis and/or through group sessions. Students may request tutoring through their instructor or the Continuing Education office.

### **Non-Academic Support Services**

Students have access to in-house supportive services, such as assistance and referral to community resources from the Continuing Education office.

### **Career Services**

The school, through its career services, makes every effort to assist graduates in locating job opportunities. The school does not guarantee employment. Students are referred for interviews based on requests received from employers and the recommendation of instructor(s). Students are urged to pursue employment opportunities provided. Those accepting employment after program completion are asked to notify the GACTC.

### **Computer Use, Internet Access, and Email Accounts**

The GACTC provides access to computers and internet access for adult students while onsite. Students must sign and abide by the Acceptable Use Policy to utilize these services. Students may use the computer labs in room 502 and 504, pending availability. Laptops may be available to use while at the GACTC, please see the Continuing Education office for assistance.

Students may be issued a GACTC Google account including a GACTC email address. Students have access to the assigned Google account from one year of completion from the enrolled program. Access to the assigned Google account may be terminated immediately for students that withdraw or are terminated from the enrolled program.